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From: @dewr.gov.au>
Sent: Friday, 10 May 2024 2:49 PM
To: WALLBANK,Angela; MCCORMACK,Helen; WEARNE,Jodie; CARR,Henry
Cc:  Everist, Kai  

 Christina.Garbin@pmc.gov.au; Jose, Cameron;  
 PURVIS-SMITH, Marisa; Werner, Stephanie; BUCKLEY, Brendon;  

Subject: Bonza Aviation Pty Ltd (Administrators Appointed)  [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Good aŌernoon everyone, 
 
Henry and I aƩended the first meeƟng of creditors of Bonza AviaƟon today. 
 
The purpose of the first meeƟng in a voluntary administraƟon is for creditors to decide two quesƟons: 

 whether they want to form a committee of inspection (committee), and, if so, who will be on the committee 
 whether they want the existing administrator to be removed and replaced by an administrator of their choice. 

Some key points from the meeƟng are as follows: 
 

 To date, no nominaƟons have been received for the Administrators’ replacement. 
 The Administrators have received a number of nominaƟons to the commiƩee. They cited and supported our 

nominaƟon to the commiƩee as an observer.  The nominees represent a good variety of creditor groups, 
including employees, DEWR (HC), unions, trade creditors, airports and the ATO. 

 Pursuant to the Order made by the Federal Court to vary the meeƟng procedure, creditors are sƟll able to 
nominate replacement Administrators and are able to nominate for the commiƩee.  NominaƟons will close at 
COB on Monday 13 May 2024.  Following close of nominaƟons, creditors will be asked to vote for the 
resoluƟons and the outcome will be published on Hall Chadwick’s website. 

 The Administrators are running an Expressions of Interest campaign and have been in discussions/negoƟaƟons 
with c.20 interested parƟes, including investors and other companies in travel industry – both Australian and 
internaƟonal. 

 One employee menƟoned there is a non-compete clause in employee contracts.  The Administrators noted they 
have not sought any legal advice regarding this clause.  Stuart Lewin, Mills Oakley for the Administrators noted 
as a maƩer of law, if the company is not in a posiƟon to honour its obligaƟons under the employment contract, 
then employees won’t be bound by them.  

 All of the leased aircraŌ (except the plane called “Bruce” which leŌ the country last night) are sƟll in Australia 
but the Administrators advise they are likely to leave soon. 

 It is unlikely they will resume flying on 15 May 2024. 
 The Administrators do not wish to keep employees and other creditors in limbo for any longer than 

necessary.  They are endeavouring to move quickly so that a decision can be made.  They intend to work over 
the weekend to agree a deadline for interested parƟes to submit offers/DOCA proposals and will convey that 
deadline to all parƟes.  They indicated the posiƟon and the fate of employees will likely be known within the 
next one to two weeks. 

 Known creditors  include: 
o 5 secured creditors  
o Employees  - $5,301,235 – Wages and Annual leave only 
o Lessors - $4.626M 
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o Landlords - $10.4M owed to 22 parƟes
o Loans $76.8M – owed to 2 parƟes
o Customers (57,933 claims) $TBD
o Trade creditors $15.9M

If you have any quesƟons, please contact me. 

Kind regards 

 
Senior Forensic InvesƟgator 

AcƟve Creditor | Recovery and LiƟgaƟon Branch 
EnƟtlements Safeguards Division 
Australian Government Department of Employment and Workplace RelaƟons 
T:  @dewr.gov.au  

Legal in confidence: This transmission is intended only for the use of the addressee and may contain confidenƟal or 
legally privileged informaƟon. If you are not the intended recipient, you are noƟfied that any use or disseminaƟon of 
this communicaƟon is strictly prohibited. If you have received this transmission in error, please noƟfy us immediately by 
telephone and delete copies of this transmission together with any aƩachments. 

Notice: 

The information contained in this email message and any attached files may be confidential information, and 
may also be the subject of legal professional privilege. If you are not the intended recipient any use, disclosure 
or copying of this email is unauthorised. If you received this email in error, please notify the sender by 
contacting the department's switchboard on 1300 488 064 during business hours (8:30am - 5pm Canberra time) 
and delete all copies of this transmission together with any attachments.  
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7 May 2024 
 
Update on the Administrators Activities 
 
The Administrators refer to earlier releases wherein it was advised that the Lessors of the aircraft issued 
termination notices on 29 April 2024 at 11.51pm AEST which immediately grounded the Company’s 
fleet of aircraft. 
 
The Administrators have been in discussions with the Lessors of the aircraft in order to determine 
whether the grounded aircraft could become operational in the short term. 
 
The Administrators have regretfully been advised that the Lessors will continue to enforce their rights 
under the termination notices and, subject to their own requirements and arrangements, seek to 
reposition the fleet elsewhere. 
 
This is a difficult situation, and the Administrators recognise the significant impact on all stakeholders 
including the Company’s employees and customers. 
 
Notwithstanding this, the Administrators are reviewing all available options to allow the resumption of 
the Company’s operations. They will continue in their efforts through various discussions with interested 
parties, potential investors, and other airlines. 
 
The Administrators expect that a additional time  will be required in order facilitate and finalise, if 
possible, these arrangements. 
 
As such, flights from 8 May 2024 up to and including 14 May 2024 will be cancelled. Customers with 
bookings during this period are advised not to travel to the airport unless they have alternative travel 
arrangements. 
 
The Administrators must also extend the stand down of the Company’s staff during this period. 
 
Creditors Meeting 
 
The Administrators have convened the initial meeting of creditors for 10 May 2024 in accordance with 
section 436E the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth). 
 
Given the large number of creditors, approximately 58,000 in number (including passenger bookings), 
the Administrators have filed an application in the Federal Court of Australia in relation to the conduct 
of the creditors meeting. The Administrators have brought this application to, amongst other things, 
minimise costs incurred in convening the meeting. 
 

Creditors will be advised of the outcome of the Administrators’ application and any further information 
required pertaining to the meeting. 
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(Administrators Appointed) 

A.C.N. 653 309 909 
(“the Company”) 

 

   
 

Administrators’ prior involvement 
 
The Administrators have made a Declaration of Independence, Relevant Relationships and Indemnities 
(DIRRI), which was lodged with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission and was 
circulated to creditors on 3 May 2024. 
 
The Administrators disclosed prior involvement with the Company in the DIRRI. They were introduced 
to an advisor of the Company on 9 November 2023. This introduction was in relation to a potential 
engagement involving a review of the Company’s financial position and an investment and/or acquisition 
for the Company – not an insolvency and restructuring engagement.  
 
The engagement was never entered into. 
 
The Administrators were contacted on 30 April 2024 in relation to the appointment of the Administrators 
to the Company. The Administrators met the directors of the Company for the first time at a meeting on 
30 April 2024. 
 
 
Support for Customers 
 
As previously advised the Administrators have established a dedicated phone line for all customer 
enquiries.  
 
That number is 03 8678 1600 and is available 7am to 10pm AEST. 
 
 
Refunds 
 
The Administrators confirm that they are not in a position to process or issue refunds on behalf of the 
Company at this time. 
 
Customers who have had their flights cancelled should contact their financial institution to discuss 
available options. 

Customers may also wish to liaise with any insurance providers, in the event they have travel insurance 
for the bookings. 

Email contacts for each class of stakeholder 
 
We will continue to provide these email addresses so all stakeholders can contact the Administrators 
office. 
 

• bonzaemployees@hallchadwick.com.au 
• bonzacreditors@hallchadwick.com.au 
• bonzasuppliers@hallchadwick.com.au 
• bonzalessors@hallchadwick.com.au 
• bonzacustomers@hallchadwick.com.au  

 
 



 

To the creditor, 
 
We refer to the Initial Information to Creditors dated 3 May 2024 and the Combined Notice of 
Appointment and First Meeting of Creditors. 
 
This notice sets out important deadlines that you will need to consider if you wish to 
participate in the first meeting of creditors to be held at 11:00am on Friday, 10 May 2024 (First 
Meeting of Creditors). 
 
It also gives notice of the orders made by the Federal Court of Australia today. A copy of these 
orders is attached. 
 
Time for submission of proofs of debt and proxies for participation in First Meeting of 
Creditors 
 
The Administrators have previously notified Creditors that the time by which proofs of debt and 
proxies for the purpose of the First Meeting of Creditors must be submitted to the Administrators 
is 11:00am on Wednesday, 8 May 2024. That time has now been extended to 11:59pm on 
Wednesday, 8 May 2024. 
 
If you wish to submit a proof of debt or proxy and participate in the First Meeting of Creditors 
you need to do so by completing the forms attached to the Initial Information to Creditors dated 
3 May 2024 by 11:59pm on Wednesday, 8 May 2024. 
 
Please submit any proofs of debt and proxies to bonzacreditors@hallchadwick.com.au 
 
General proxies for First Meeting of Creditors 
 
If you wish to appoint a proxy to attend the First Meeting of Creditors on your behalf, you must 
either:   
 

a. appoint any person as a special proxy by indicating on the proxy form that you vote in 
favour, against or abstain from voting on each resolution; or 
 

b. appoint one of the Administrators or the chairperson of the meeting (Chairperson) as 
your general proxy by not indicating how you wish to vote on the proxy form. 

 
If you appoint a general proxy who is not one of the Administrators or the Chairperson, your 
proxy will be disregarded and you will not have the opportunity to vote at the First Meeting of 
Creditors by proxy.   
 
If you have already submitted a general proxy which appoints a person other than an 
Administrator or the Chairperson, you have until 11:59pm on Wednesday, 8 May 2024 to 
submit another proxy form that complies with the requirements above.   
 
Questions at First Meeting of Creditors 
 
Because of the large number of persons who may participate in the First Meeting of Creditors, 
the Administrators may not be able to provide Creditors with an opportunity to ask questions at 
the First Meeting of Creditors.   
 
If you wish to submit a question to the Administrators for them to consider and respond to at 
the First Meeting of Creditors, you need to do so by submitting questions in writing by 11:59pm 
on Wednesday, 8 May 2024.   



 
Please submit any questions to bonzacreditors@hallchadwick.com.au 
 
Depending upon the number of questions received, it may not be possible for the Administrators 
to answer all questions submitted to them. In that circumstance, the Administrators will provide 
a written answer to questions that have not been addressed in a “Frequently Asked Questions” 
format after the First Meeting of Creditors. 

 

















 
 
 

 

3 May 2024 
 

INITIAL INFORMATION FOR CREDITORS 
OF 

BONZA AVIATION PTY LTD 
(ADMINISTRATORS APPOINTED) 

A.C.N. 653 309 909 
(“the Company”) 

 
Richard Albarran, Kathleen Vouris, Brent Kijurina and Cameron Shaw were appointed Administrators 
of the Company on 30 April 2024 pursuant to Section 436A of the Corporations Act 2001 (“the Act”) by 
a resolution of the directors of the Company. 
 

1. Independence 
 
In accordance with Section 436DA of the Act, a copy of the Administrators’ Declaration of 
Independence, Relevant Relationships and Indemnities (“DIRRI”) with respect to this appointment is 
attached to this report for creditors’ review. We note that the DIRRI has also been lodged with the 
Australian Securities and Investments Commission (“ASIC”) as required by the Act. 
 
Based on the details set out in the DIRRI, there are no conflicts of interest or relationships that affect 
the independence of the Administrators. A copy of the DIRRI will be tabled at the forthcoming meeting 
of creditors. 
 

2. Voluntary Administration 
 
The purpose of the appointment of an Administrator is to allow for an independent insolvency 
practitioner to take control of and investigate the financial affairs of an insolvent company or a company 
that is likely to become insolvent.  
 
The effect of our appointment as Administrators of the Company is that the liabilities and obligations to 
creditors in general as at 30 April 2024 are now frozen. We have convened a first meeting of creditors 
to be held on 10 May 2024 at 11:00AM (AEST) as discussed further below. 
 
During the period of the administration, we will prepare a report to creditors detailing our investigations 
into the Company’s business, property, affairs and financial circumstances as well as provide our 
opinion on the future of the Company with respect to the best interests of creditors.   
 
Creditors will receive this report prior to a second meeting of creditors that will be held in approximately 
four (4) to six (6) weeks from the date of our appointment. At this second meeting of creditors, creditors 
will have an opportunity to vote on the future of the Company, that is, by resolving that: 
 

 The Company execute a Deed of Company Arrangement (being a binding arrangement that 
usually provides for a better return to unsecured creditors than a liquidation); or 
 

 The Administration should end; or 
 

 The Company be wound up (or liquidated). 
 

 



 
 

3. Events Leading to Appointment and Ongoing Trade of the Business 
 
Events Leading to Appointment 
 
On 29 April 2024, at 11.51pm AEST, the Lessors of the Aircraft leased to the Company issued notices 
to the Company terminating their leases in place for the aircraft.  
 
Amongst various other requirements, these notices required the Company to immediately cease to 
operate the Aircraft and keep the Aircraft grounded and safely secured.  
 
Whilst these notices were preceded by Event of Default Notices issued on 17 April 2024, the Directors 
of the Company have advised the action taken by the Lessors was not foreshadowed or expected.  
 
As a result, the Company’s board met on the morning of Tuesday 30 April 2024 and resolved to appoint 
Richard Albarran, Kathleen Vouris, Brent Kijurina, and Cameron Shaw as Administrators of the 
Company. 
 
Ongoing Trade of the Business 
 
Following the appointment, the Administrators have been in constant discussions and meetings with 
the Company’s management team and key employees to understand the trading operation and 
cashflow requirements of various scenarios.  
 
The Administrators have also been in meetings and discussions with key industry participants within 
Australia and overseas with regard to the current status, and a way forward for the Company and it’s 
operations.  
 
The largest consideration for these parties is the current status of the Aircraft, which currently remains 
grounded. The Administrators have had a number of discussions with the Lessors.  
 
As a result, the fleet has been grounded and the grounding will continue until at least Tuesday, 7 May 
2024.  
 
Customers with bookings during this period are advised not to travel to the airport unless they have 
alternative travel arrangements.  
 
Meetings between the Administrators, the interested parties and the Lessors have been continuing 
daily.  
 
During this time, whilst the Aircraft remain grounded, and there is insufficient cashflow and funding, the 
Administrators are unable to recommence full operations.  
 
The Administrators had no alternative but to stand down the majority of the employees of the Company, 
pending the outcome of these above ongoing discussions. Some employees will continue to assist the 
Administrators with their efforts. 
 
The Administrators appreciate this is not the news that the employees, customers, and other key 
stakeholders would like to hear however there is no alternative course of action available to the 
Administrators at this point in time.  
 
The Administrators will continue to work on the above meetings and endeavour to find the best possible 
solution for all stakeholders.  



 
 

The Administrators have and will continue to liaise with government bodies in respect to the above. 
 
Financial Position of the Company 
 
There have been a number of requests for details regarding the financial position of the Company. This 
information remains commercially sensitive, and subject to ongoing investigation, and cannot be made 
public at this point. 
 
Future Actions 
 
The discussions regarding ongoing trading are occurring over the forthcoming days and the 
Administrators will be in a position to update all stakeholders as the matter progresses. 
 
Creditors are requested to close off the existing account of the Company in respect of goods and 
services supplied up to 30 April 2024. Creditors are also required to notify our office immediately, by 
telephone or email, of the existence of any PPSR related security interests registered over any stock, 
plant, property or equipment held by the Company. 
 
Supplies of goods and services may be requested from you, and you are advised that in accordance 
with Section 443A of the Act, the Administrators are liable for debts incurred in continuing to trade the 
Company. Therefore, any purchase order appropriately authorised by ourselves or our staff, will be paid 
for by our office. An order will be appropriately authorised if it is received by you under cover of our 
letterhead and contains an authorised signatory (as detailed in the attached list of authorised 
signatories). This office will then make arrangements to pay for the goods on the terms arranged with 
each supplier. We suggest that you open a new account styled “Bonza Aviation Pty Ltd (Administrators 
Appointed)” for ease in accounting for any future orders.  
 
The Directors and staff of the Company have been instructed that they are not permitted to order goods 
or services. The only persons permitted to transact or deal on behalf of the Company are the staff of 
our office who have been authorised in writing to do so. 
 
Any contractor requested to undertake work on behalf of the Company must have in place their own 
workers compensation insurance and an appropriate Workplace Health & Safety Management System 
to comply with Workplace Health & Safety law. 
 

4. Your rights as a Creditor 
 
Attached is an information sheet prepared by the Australian Restructuring Insolvency & Turnaround 
Association (“ARITA”) setting out your rights as a creditor of the Company. 
 
Should you require any specific information or a report from the Administrators, please submit these 
requests to our office via email to the appropriate email address outlined at section 9. 
 

5. First Meeting of Creditors 
 
In accordance with Section 436E of the Act, the Administrators must convene a meeting of the 
Company’s creditors to be held within eight (8) business days after the Administration begins. At this 
meeting, we will provide creditors with an update on the progress of the administration. 
 
 
 
 
 





 
 

 
8. Stranded Passengers 

 
The Government has established a hotline for stranded passengers, this number is 1800 069 244.  
 

9. Email contacts for each class of Stakeholder  
 

 bonzaemployees@hallchadwick.com.au   
 bonzacreditors@hallchadwick.com.au    
 bonzasuppliers@hallchadwick.com.au   
 bonzalessors@hallchadwick.com.au   
 bonzacustomers@hallchadwick.com.au   

 
10. Attachments 

 
Enclosed are the following: 
 

1. Declaration of Independence, Relevant Relationships and Indemnities; 
2. List of authorised signatories;  
3. ARITA Information Sheet: Creditor Rights in Voluntary Administrations; 
4. ARITA Information Sheet: Committees of Inspection; 
5. Notice of Meeting; 
6. Proxy Form;  
7. Proof of Debt Form; and  
8. Initial Remuneration Notice. 

 
In addition to the attachments to this report, further information is available from ARITA to assist 
creditors with understanding voluntary administrations and insolvency. This information is available 
from ARITA’s website at www.arita.com.au/creditors.  
 
ASIC also provides information sheets on a range of insolvency topics. These information sheets can 
be accessed on ASIC’s website at www.asic.gov.au (search “insolvency information sheets”). 
 
If you have any queries or require further information, please contact this office via the appropriate 
communication channel as detailed above. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
 
RICHARD ALBARRAN 
ADMINISTRATOR 
 



 

 

Declaration of Independence, Relevant Relationships and Indemnities 
 

Bonza Aviation Pty. Ltd. 
(Administrators Appointed) 

A.C.N. 653 309 909 
(“the Company”) 

 
The purpose of this document (“DIRRI”) is to assist creditors with understanding any relevant 
relationships that we have with parties who are closely connected to the Company and any indemnities 
or upfront payments that have been provided to us. None of the relationships disclosed in this DIRRI 
are such that our independence is affected. 
 
The information is provided so you have trust and confidence in our independence and, if not, you can 
ask for further explanation or information and can act to remove and replace us if you wish. 
 
This declaration is made in respect of ourselves, our partners, Hall Chadwick, Hall Chadwick 
Melbourne, Hall Chadwick (Philippines) Inc Hall Chadwick (Singapore) and the independent firms of 
Hall Chadwick Qld, Hall Chadwick WA and Hall Chadwick NZ 
 
 
A. Independence  
 
We, Richard Albarran, Kathleen Vouris, Brent Kijurina, and Cameron Shaw of Hall Chadwick, have 
undertaken a proper assessment of the risks to our independence prior to accepting the appointment 
as Administrators of the Company in accordance with the law and applicable professional standards. 
This assessment identified no real or potential risks to our independence. We are not aware of any 
reasons that would prevent us from accepting this appointment.  
 
 
B. Circumstances of Appointment 

 
How was the appointment referred to us   
 
On 9 November 2023 Mr. Cameron Shaw of Hall Chadwick was introduced to Manish Raniga, an 
adviser to the Company, by Jeff Chatfield, an associate in the aviation industry, to discuss potential 
engagements, as outlined below.  
 
We believe that this referral does not result in a conflict of interest or duty because: 

 
 Referrals from solicitors, business advisors, accountants and/or other professionals are 

commonplace and do not impact on our independence in carrying out our duties as 
Administrators;  

 There is no expectation, agreement or understanding between us and the Referrer regarding 
our conduct or approach towards this and any future referrals and we are free to act 
independently and in accordance with the laws and the requirements of the Australian 
Restructuring Insolvency and Turnaround Association’s (“ARITA”) Code of Professional 
Practice;  

 There is no understanding that any matters in respect to this appointment will be referred to the 
Referrer; and 

 We have provided no other information or advice to the Company, the Directors, the Referrer 
or the Company’s advisors prior to our appointment beyond that outlined in this DIRRI;  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Dealings/interactions with the Company, Directors and/or others before the appointment  
 

The following meetings, telephone conversations and email exchanges took place prior to our 
appointment as the Administrators of the Company: 

 
 Mr. Shaw had a call with Mr Raniga on 10 November 2023. 
 On 20 November 2023 Mr. Richard Albarran and Mr. Jovan Singh of Hall Chadwick had a 

meeting with Mr. Raniga. 
 During November 2023, January 2024 and April 2024, Mr. Singh had nine (9) calls with Mr. 

Raniga, of which Mr. Drew Townsend of Hall Chadwick, attended one (1). 
 During this time Mr. Singh also exchanged numerous emails with Mr Raniga. 
 

The above meetings, telephone conversations and email exchanges were for the purposes of 
discussing and understanding the following: 

 
 Background, nature and business of the Company; 
 Discuss a potential engagement of Hall Chadwick as advisers to review the financial 

position of the Company; 
 Discuss a potential engagement of Hall Chadwick as consultants to assist with an 

investment and/or acquisition proposal for the Company. 
 
At no point during the above calls or emails were any of the above engagements entered into. 
 
We received no remuneration for these meetings, telephone conversations and email exchanges. 
 
On Monday 30 April 2024, Mr Raniga contacted Mr Singh in relation to the appointment of 
Administrators to the Company. 
 
In our opinion, these meetings, telephone conversations and email exchanges do not affect our 
independence for the following reasons: 

 
 Neither our firm, Hall Chadwick and the national independent firms, nor our staff have had a 

prior relationship with the Company or its associates that would preclude us from acting as 
Administrators of the Company; 

 The Courts and the ARITA Code of Professional Practice specifically recognise the need for 
practitioners to provide advice on the insolvency process and the options available and do not 
consider that such advice results in a conflict or is an impediment to accepting the appointment; 

 The pre-appointment advice will not influence our ability to be able to fully comply with the 
statutory and fiduciary obligations associated with the Administration of the Company in an 
objective and impartial manner; and  

 The nature of advice provided to the Company is such that it would not be subject to review 
and challenge during the course of the appointment. 
 

We have provided no other information or advice to the Company, the Directors or the Referrer prior to 
our appointment beyond that outlined in this DIRRI.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

C. Declaration of Relationships 
 

Prior Professional Services to the Company 
 

Neither we, nor our firm, have provided any professional services to the Company in the previous twenty 
four (24) months.  

 
Relevant Relationships (excluding Professional Services to the Company)  

  
Neither we, nor our firm, have, or have had within the preceding twenty four (24) months, any 
relationships with the Company, an associate of the Company, a former insolvency practitioner 
appointed to the Company or any person or entity that is entitled to enforce a security interest in the 
whole or substantially the whole of the Company’s property. 
 
Group Appointments   
 
Concurrently, we were also appointed to the following entities:  
 

Name Nature of Relationship Reasons why no conflict of interest or duty 
777 Oz Holdco Pty 
Ltd (Administrators 
Appointed) (“777 
Oz”) 

Related entity via: 
 Common directorship; 

and 
 Holding/Subsidiary 

relationship. 

I believe that this relationship does not result in 
a conflict of interest or duty because: 

 
 The Company is a subsidiary of 777 Oz. 
 The nature of the relationship means that 

the appointments can be conducted more 
efficiently by the same appointees. 

 At the time of our appointment, we were 
not aware of any conflicts of interest 
between the Company and 777 Oz.  
Should such a conflict arise, we will inform 
creditors and take appropriate actions to 
resolve the conflict. 

Ops In A Box Pty 
Ltd (Administrators 
Appointed) (“Ops”) 

Related entity via: 
 Common directorship: 

- Steven William 
Pasko 

- Adam Randall 
Weiss 

I believe that this relationship does not result in 
a conflict of interest or duty because: 
 The Company and Ops are related parties 

with the same shareholder.  
 The nature of the relationship means that 

the appointments can be conducted more 
efficiently by the same appointee. 

 At the time of our appointment we were not 
aware of any conflicts of interest between 
the Company and Ops. Should such a 
conflict arise, we will inform creditors and 
take appropriate actions to resolve the 
conflict. 

 
No Other Relevant Relationships to Disclose 

 
There are no other known relevant relationships, including personal, business and professional 
relationships, from the previous twenty four (24) months with the Company, an associate of the 
Company, a former insolvency practitioner appointed to the Company, or any person or entity that is 
entitled to enforce a security interest in the whole or substantially the whole of the Company’s property 
that should be disclosed. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
D. Indemnities and Upfront Payments 

 
We have not been indemnified in relation to this Voluntary Administration, other than any indemnities 
that we may be entitled to under statute and we have not received any upfront payments in respect of 
our remuneration or disbursements. 
 
 
Dated: 3 May 2024. 
 
 
 
……………………………………..    …………………………………….. 
KATHLEEN VOURIS      RICHARD ALBARRAN 
ADMINISTRATOR    ADMINISTRATOR 

 

 

……………………………………..    …………………………………….. 
BRENT KIJURINA    CAMERON SHAW 
ADMINISTRATOR    ADMINISTRATOR 

 
Note: 
 

The assessment of independence has been made based on the evaluation of the significance of any threats to 
independence and in accordance with the requirements of the relevant legislation and professional standards.  

 

If circumstances change, or new information is identified, I am required under the Corporations Act 2001, APES 
330 Insolvency Services and if relevant, ARITA’s Code of Professional Practice, to update this DIRRI and 
provide a copy to creditors with my next communication. This DIRRI and any updated versions are also required 
to be lodged with ASIC where applicable.    

 

 

 



 

 

LIST OF AUTHORISED SIGNATORIES 

 

 

 

Richard Albarran 
ADMINISTRATOR 

 
  
 

 

Brent Kijurina 
ADMINISTRATOR 

 
 
 

 

Kathleen Vouris 
ADMINISTRATOR 

 
 
 

 

Cameron Shaw 
ADMINISTRATOR 

 
 
 
 
 







Specific queries should be directed to the external administrator s office. 

AUSTRALIAN RESTRUCTURING INSOLVENCY & TURNAROUND ASSOCIATION 

Information Sheet: Committees of Inspection 
You have been elected to be, or are considering standing for the role of, a member of a Committee of 
Inspection (COI) in either a liquidation, voluntary administration or deed of company arrangement of a 
company (collectively referred to as an external administration). 

This information sheet is to assist you with understanding your rights and responsibilities as a member of 
a COI. 

    

A COI is a small group of creditors elected to represent the interests of creditors in the external 
administration. The COI advises and assists the external administrator and also has the power to 
approve and request certain things  this is discussed in more detail below. 

Membership of the COI is a voluntary, unpaid position. 

To be eligible to be appointed as a member of a COI, a person must be: 

 A creditor 
 A person holding the power of attorney of a creditor 
 A person authorised in writing by a creditor; or 
 A representative of the Commonwealth where a claim for financial assistance has, or is likely to 

be, made in relation to unpaid employee entitlements. 

If a member of the COI is a company, it can be represented by an individual authorised in writing to act 
. It also allows the creditor to maintain its representation if a change in the 

individual is required  

A COI usually has between 5 and 7 members, though it can have more, or less, depending on the size of 
the external administration. 

A member of a COI can be appointed by: 

 resolution at a meeting of creditors 
 an employee or a group of employees owed at least 50% of the entitlements owed to employees 

of the company 
 a large creditor or group of creditors that are owed at least 10% of 

claims, 

If an employee or group of employees, or a large creditor or group of creditors, appoints a member to the 
COI, they cannot vote on the general resolution of creditors to appoint members to the COI. Each of 
these groups also have the power to remove their appointed member of the COI and appoint someone 
else. 

What is a COI? 

Who can be elected to a COI? 
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If you are absent from 5 consecutive meetings of the COI without leave of the COI or you become an 
insolvent under administration, you are removed from the COI. 

A COI has the following roles: 

 to advise and assist the liquidator, voluntary administrator or deed administrator (collectively 
referred to as the external administrator) 

 to give directions to the external administrator  
 to monitor the conduct of the external administration. 

In respect of directions, the external administrator is only required to have regard to those directions. If 
there is a conflict between the directions of the COI and the creditors, the directions of the creditors 
prevail. If the external administrator chooses not to comply with the directions of the COI, the external 
administrator must document why. 

A COI also has the power to: 

 approve remuneration of the external administrator after the external administrator has provided 
the COI with a Remuneration Approval Report (a detailed report setting out the remuneration for 
undertaking the external administration) 

e of 
debts over $100,000 and entering into contracts over 3 months) 

 request information from the external administrator 
 approve the destruction of the books and records of the external administration on the conclusion 

of the external administration 
 with the approval of the external administrator, obtain specialist advice or assistance in relation to 

the conduct of the external administration 
 apply to the Court for the Court to enquire into the external administration. 

An external administrator is not required to convene a meeting of creditors if the request by the COI is 
unreasonable, or provide requested information if the request is unreasonable, not relevant to the 
administration or would cause the external administrator to breach their duties. 

A request to convene a meeting of creditors is unreasonable if: 

 it would substantially prejudice the interests of a creditor or third party 
 there are insufficient funds in the external administration to cover the cost of the request 
 a meeting of creditors dealing with the same matters has already been held or will be held within 

15 business days, or 
 the request is vexatious. 

If a request for a meeting is reasonable, the external administrator must hold a meeting of creditors as 
soon as reasonably practicable. 

What are the roles and powers of a COI? 





 

 

NOTICE OF FIRST MEETING OF CREDITORS 
OF COMPANY UNDER ADMINISTRATION 

 
BONZA AVIATION PTY LTD  

(ADMINISTRATORS APPOINTED) 
A.C.N. 653 309 909 
(“the Company”) 

 
1. On 30 April 2024 the Directors of the Company appointed Richard Albarran, Kathleen 

Vouris, Brent Kijurina, and Cameron Shaw of Hall Chadwick Chartered Accountants as 
Administrators in accordance with Section 436A of the Corporations Act 2001 (“the Act”).   

 
2. Notice is now given that a virtual meeting of the creditors of the Company will be held at 

the Sheraton Grand Sydney, Hyde Park, Hyde Park Room, 161 Elizabeth Street, Sydney, 
NSW 2000 and via virtual meeting technology on Friday, 10 May 2024 at 11:00AM 
(AEST). 

 
3. The purpose of the meeting is to determine whether to: 

 
(a) appoint a Committee of Inspection and if so, who are to be the committee members 

and that a member of the Committee of Inspection may directly or indirectly 
derive a profit or advantage from the external administration of the Company; 
and 

(b) remove the Administrators from office and appoint someone else as Administrators 
of the Company. 

 
Dated this 3rd day of May 2024. 
 
 
 
 
RICHARD ALBARRAN  
ADMINISTRATOR 
 
Creditors wishing to attend the meeting must complete the attached proxy form and return it to 
our office before the meeting. To assist with the smooth running of the meeting we request that 
all proxies be received by our office forty eight (48) hours before the appointed time for the 
meeting. 
 
Virtual Meeting Technology (Videoconference Facilities) 
 
Creditors wishing to participate in the meeting by videoconference are advised to contact this 
office via email at bonzacreditors@hallchadwick.com.au in order to obtain the relevant details to 
attend at the meeting.  
 
Sufficient information (above) has been given to persons who are entitled to attend the meeting 
to participate in the meeting by means of the Virtual Meeting Technology. 
 
Creditors Please Note 
 

The effect of IPR Section 75-85 (entitlement to vote as creditor at meetings of creditors) is: 
 

(1) A person other than a creditor (or the creditor’s proxy or attorney) is not entitled to vote 
at a meeting of creditors. 
 

(2) Subject to subsections (3), (4) and (5), each creditor is entitled to vote and has one vote. 
 

(3) A person is not entitled to vote as a creditor at a meeting of creditors unless: 
 



 

 

(a) his or her debt or claim has been admitted wholly or in part by the external 
administrator; or 

(b) he or she has lodged, with the person presiding at the meeting, or with the person 
named in the notice convening the meeting as the person who may receive 
particulars of the debt or claim: 

(i) those particulars; or 
(ii) if required - a formal proof of the debt or claim. 

 
(4) A creditor must not vote in respect of: 

 
(a) an unliquidated debt; or 
(b) a contingent debt; or 
(c) an unliquidated or a contingent claim; or 
(d) a debt the value of which is not established; 

  
 unless a just estimate of its value has been made. 

 
(5) A creditor must not vote in respect of a debt or a claim on or secured by a bill of exchange, 

a promissory note or any other negotiable instrument or security held by the creditor 
unless he or she is willing to do the following: 

 
(a) treat the liability to him or her on the instrument or security of a person covered 

by subsection (6) as a security in his or her hands; 
(b) estimate its value; 
(c) for the purposes of voting (but not for the purposes of dividend), to deduct it from 

his or her debt or claim. 
 

(6) A person is covered by this subsection if: 
 

(a) the person’s liability is a debt or a claim on, or secured by, a bill of exchange, a 
promissory note or any other negotiable instrument or security held by the 
creditor; and 

(b) the person is either liable to the company directly, or may be liable to the 
company on the default of another person with respect to the liability; and 

(c) the person is not an insolvent under administration or a person against whom a 
winding up order is in force. 

 
In addition, pursuant to IPR Section 75-25, if a creditor wishes to be represented at the 
meeting by an attorney, the creditor must arrange for the power of attorney to be produced 
to the external administrator at or before the meeting. 

 
 
 
 



 
Corporations Act 2001  

 
Insolvency Practice Rules 75-25 

 
BONZA AVIATION PTY LTD 

(ADMINISTRATORS APPOINTED) 
A.C.N. 653 309 909 
(“the Company”) 

   
 

APPOINTMENT OF PROXY 
 
*I/*We……………………………………………………………..(if a firm, strike out “I” and set out the full name of 
the firm) of………………………………………………………………………………………………….(address), a 
*creditor/*contributory/*debenture holder/*member of Bonza Aviation Pty Ltd (Administrators Appointed),  
appoint……………………………………………………………….(name, address and description of the person 
appointed) or in his or her absence……………………………………………………………as*my/*our *general/* 
special proxy to vote at the meeting of creditors to be held at the Sheraton Grand Sydney, Hyde Park, Hyde 
Park Room, 161 Elizabeth Street, Sydney, NSW 2000 and via videoconference on 10 May 2024 at 11:00 AM 
(AEST), or at any adjournment of that meeting.  
 
If a creditor is appointing a special proxy, please indicate whether your vote is in favour/against or abstaining 
of the resolution. It is expected the following resolutions may be voted upon: 
 

Resolutions**  To Vote 
For 

To Vote 
Against Abstain 

To remove the Administrators from office and appoint 
……………………………………………. as Administrator(s) of the Company. 

 
   

 
To appoint a Committee of Inspection and if so, appoint 
……………………………………………… as a committee member and that a 
member of the Committee of Inspection may directly or indirectly derive a profit 
or advantage from the external administration of the Company. 

 

   

 
* Delete if not applicable. 
 
** Only if appointing a special proxy should you tick the relevant box indicating which way you wish to vote on 
each resolution. 
 
 
Dated:  
 
 
____________________________ 
Signature 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Signing capacity 
 
 



 
Subregulation 5.6.49(2) 

FORM 535 
FORMAL PROOF OF DEBT OR CLAIM (GENERAL FORM) 

 
Bonza Aviation Pty Ltd  

(Administrators Appointed) 
A.C.N. 653 309 909 
(“the Company”) 

 
To the Administrators of the Company, 
 
1. This is to state that the Company was on 30 April 2024, and still is, justly and truly indebted to  

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
(full name and address of the creditor and, if applicable, the creditor’s partners. If prepared by an 
employee or agent of the creditor, also insert a description of the occupation of the creditor)  
for $ _______________ 

 
 

Date Consideration 
(state how the debt arose) 

Amount 
$   c 

Remarks 
(include details of voucher 
substantiating  payment) 

    

 
2. To my knowledge or belief the creditor has not, nor has any person by the creditor’s order, had or 

received any satisfaction or security for the sum or any part of it except for the following: 
 

Date Drawer Acceptor Amount $c Due Date 

     

3.  

o I am employed by the creditor and authorised in writing by the creditor to make this statement. 
The debt was incurred for the consideration stated and that the debt, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, remains unpaid and unsatisfied. 

o I am the creditor’s agent authorised in writing to make this statement in writing. The debt was 
incurred for the consideration stated and that the debt, to the best of my knowledge and belief, 
remains unpaid and unsatisfied. 

o I am the creditor and I make this claim personally. The debt was incurred for the 
consideration stated and that the debt, to the best of my knowledge and belief, remains 
unpaid and unsatisfied. 

 
 
___________________________         Dated this ______ day of ____________ 2024. 
Signature 
Occupation: 
Address: 
Email address: 

(Attach documentation such as copies of invoices in support of your claim) 
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BONZA AVIATION PTY LTD  
(ADMINISTRATORS APPOINTED) 

A.C.N. 653 309 909 
(“The Company”) 

 
Initial Remuneration Notice 

 
The purpose of the Initial Remuneration Notice is to provide you with information about how 
remuneration for undertaking this administration will be set. 
 
Remuneration Methods 
 

There are four basic methods that can be used to calculate the remuneration charged by an insolvency 
practitioner. They are: 
 

1. Time based hourly rates 
This is the most common method. The total fee charged is based on the hourly rate charged 
for each person who carried out the work multiplied by the number of hours spent by each 
person on each of the tasks performed. 
 
2. Fixed Fee 
The total fee charged is normally quoted at the commencement of the administration and is 
the total cost for the administration. Sometimes a practitioner will finalise an administration for 
a fixed fee. 
 
3. Percentage 
The total fee charged is based on a percentage of a particular variable, such as the gross 
proceeds of asset realisations. 
 
4. Contingency 
The practitioner’s fee is contingent on a particular outcome being achieved. 

 
Method Chosen 
 
Having regard to the nature of work involved for this administration, we propose that our remuneration 
be calculated on a time based hourly rates method for the following reasons: 
 

 We will only be paid for work done, subject to sufficient realisations of the Company’s assets; 
 

 It ensures creditors are only charged for work that is performed. Time is recorded and charged 
in six minute increments and staff are allocated to duties according to their relevant experience 
and qualifications; 
 

 We are required to perform a number of tasks which do not relate to the realisation of assets, 
for example responding to creditor enquiries, reporting to the Australian Securities and 
Investments Commission (“ASIC”), distributing funds in accordance with the provisions of the 
Corporations Act 2001; and 
 

 We are unable to estimate with certainty the total amount of time necessary to complete all 
tasks required in this administration. 

 
Hourly Rates 
 
The rates for our remuneration calculation are set out in the following table together with a general 
guide showing the qualifications and experience of staff engaged in the administration and the role 
they take in the administration. The hourly rates charged encompass the total cost of providing 
professional services and should not be compared to an hourly wage. 
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OFFICIAL 
 
From: Garbin, Christina  
Sent: Tuesday, 7 May 2024 8:31 PM 
To: @pm.gov.au> 
Cc: Williams, Nadine <Nadine.Williams@pmc.gov.au>; Luchetti, Narelle <Narelle.Luchetti@pmc.gov.au>;  

@pmc.gov.au>; Livingston, Rachel <Rachel.Livingston@pmc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Bonza (Hall Chadwick) Media Statement - 7 May 2024 [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 
Hi  
As flagged, pls see updated TPs for Bonza attached. Updated sections have been highlighted for ease. 
 
Cheers 
CG 
 

From: Garbin, Christina  
Sent: Tuesday, 7 May 2024 2:06 PM 
To: @pm.gov.au> 
Cc: Williams, Nadine <Nadine.Williams@pmc.gov.au>; Luchetti, Narelle <Narelle.Luchetti@pmc.gov.au>;  

@pmc.gov.au>; Livingston, Rachel <Rachel.Livingston@pmc.gov.au> 
Subject: Bonza (Hall Chadwick) Media Statement - 7 May 2024 [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 
Hi  
Pls see attached a media release from Hall Chadwick confirming flights will be grounded until 14 May inclusive and 
that staff will be stood down for the same period. 
 
We will provide updated TPs later today. 
 
 
Cheers 
CG 
 
 
Christina Garbin 
Assistant Secretary | Infrastructure, Energy and Regional Branch 
Industry, Infrastructure & Environment Division 
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 
P: 02 6271 5509 | M:  
e. Chistina.Garbin@pmc.gov.au | w. www.pmc.gov.au  
Ngunnawal Country, One National Circuit Barton ACT 2600 | PO Box 6500 CANBERRA ACT 2600 
 
EA:  
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The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and emerging Elders and Traditional 
Custodians of Country, and the continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational practices of Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander peoples. 

 
 
 



 

 

OFFICIAL:Sensitive 

OFFICIAL:Sensitive 

 
BONZA voluntary administration 
 
Statement  
 
Bonza Aviation has gone into voluntary administration, and the majority of Bonza’s 
323 staff have been stood down. 
 
This is disappointing news, particularly for Bonza staff and customers with booked 
travel.  
 
At this stage, Bonza has cancelled all flights between Tuesday 30 April 2024 and 
Tuesday 14 May 2024, inclusive. 
  
Beyond that, Bonza flights have not been cancelled, and it is now a matter for the 
administrator to determine whether Bonza can continue to operate flights beyond 
those dates.  
 
Qantas, Virgin Australia and Jetstar have agreed to re-book Bonza passengers 
whose flight were cancelled and need to return to their home airport, at no charge. 
 
Affected Bonza passengers can contact Qantas, Virgin Australia and Jetstar, for 
assistance to make alternate bookings: 

 Qantas on 13 13 13 
 Virgin Australia on 13 67 89 
 Jetstar on 13 15 38 or Jetstar live chat. 

The administrator of Bonza, Hall Chadwick, has set up a hotline for Bonza customers 
who want to enquire about their entitlements – 03 8678 1600.  
 
Customers who have been affected can also:  

 check with your travel insurer what support is available to you 
 contact your bank or financial institution to see if payments to Bonza can be 

reversed through a ‘charge-back’  
 register as a creditor with the administrator. 

 
  



 

 

OFFICIAL:Sensitive 

OFFICIAL:Sensitive 

Key facts and figures – as at 7 May 2024 
 

Qantas, Virgin Australia and Jetstar have rebooked over 8,000 Bonza passengers 
 Qantas has made over 2,280 re-bookings * 
 Virgin Australia has re-booked over 1,370 passengers 
 Jetstar has made over 4,500 re-bookings * 

 
* Qantas and Jetstar figures are for the number of ‘bookings’, which can include 
more than one passenger. The number of passengers rebooked will be higher. 
 
A Government hotline operated between Tuesday 30 April and Thursday 2 May 
2024 to provide assistance to Bonza passengers to make alternate travel 
arrangements. The hotline took over 3,000 calls:  

 1,449 calls on 30 April 
 967 calls on 1 May 
 531 calls on 2 May 
 200 calls on 3 May. 

 
Q&A 
 

 Why won’t the Government bail out Bonza?  
 
The Government is not considering providing any financial assistance to Bonza or 
the administrator. 
 
Now that Bonza is under the control of an administrator, it is up to the administrator 
to determine the best possible way forward. 
 

 Why has the Government shut down its hotline for Bonza customers? 
 
The Government hotline was set up following the cancellation of all Bonza flights, 
without notice, on Tuesday 30 April 2024.  
 
The hotline operated for four days, to support stranded passengers who needed 
urgent assistance to make alternate travel arrangements. 
 
Affected Bonza passengers can continue to contact Qantas, Virgin Australia and 
Jetstar, for assistance to make alternate bookings: 

 Qantas on 13 13 13 
 Virgin Australia on 13 67 89 
 Jetstar on 13 15 38 or Jetstar live chat. 

Callers to the Government hotline after 3 May will hear a recorded message, 
advising them to contact the airlines directly to make alternate bookings. 
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OFFICIAL:Sensitive 

 Did Bonza ask the Government for help? 
 
Officials from the Department of Infrastructure have been engaging with Bonza and 
the administrator, Hall Chadwick.  
 
It would not be appropriate to go into the detail of the Government’s engagement 
with Bonza at this time. 
 

 What will the Government do about stranded passengers?  
 
Qantas, Virgin Australia and Jetstar are all willing to assist passengers impacted by 
the situation, including re-booking passengers who need to return to their home 
airport, at no charge. 
 
Passengers may contact these airlines directly: 

 Qantas on 13 13 13 
 Virgin Australia on 13 67 89 
 Jetstar on 13 15 38 or Jetstar live chat. 

 
 Will consumers be compensated?   

 
The administrator of Bonza, Hall Chadwick, has stated thatg “the Administrators 
and/or the Company are not in a position to process or issue refunds at this time.” 
 
Bonza customers who are out of pocket should register as a creditor with the 
administrator.  
 
The administrator has set up a hotline for Bonza customers who want to enquire 
about their entitlements – 03 8678 1600. Customers can also email the administrator 
at bonzacustomers@hallchadwick.com.au 
 
Consumer rights for airline passengers are critical and are being considered as part 
of the Aviation White Paper. 
 

 How are consumers protected under the law? 
 
The ACCC has published advice on consumer rights in the case of voluntary 
administration: [https://www.accc.gov.au/consumers/protecting-yourself/when-a-
business-goes-bust]  
 

 What will happen to Bonza employees?  
 
I understand that 323 people work for Bonza, and this would be an incredibly difficult 
time for all of them. 
 
The administrator has stood down 302 of Bonza’s 323 employees from Thursday 
2 May until Tuesday 14 May 2024. I also understand that many Bonza employees 
have not been paid all the wages they are owed. 
 



 

 

OFFICIAL:Sensitive 

OFFICIAL:Sensitive 

The Government is liaising with the administrators to understand the plight of the 
Bonza employees, whether there is capacity for the company to meet its obligation to 
pay the employee entitlements, or whether the Fair Entitlements Guarantee Scheme 
might be called upon in a subsequent liquidation. 
 
The Government’s Fair Entitlements Guarantee is a safety net scheme of last resort 
that funds certain outstanding employee entitlements of eligible employees whose 
former employer has entered liquidation or bankruptcy. 
 
The Government provides assistance for retrenched workers and their partners to 
access training and employment support that will help them into new jobs. In the 
case of large closures, an on-the-ground Transition Support Network provides 
employers and their workers with information about the support available in their 
region. This Network is made up of the Government’s Employment Facilitators, 
departmental staff, Services Australia, and other community stakeholders. 
 

 Won’t this make regional air-travel more concentrated? What is the 
Government doing about domestic airline competition?  

 
The Government wants an aviation sector that supports our nation’s way of life and 
is reliable, competitive and affordable – backed by robust consumer rights. 
 
In recent years it is clear the sector has not met the expectations of Australian 
travellers, which is why we have been working on the Aviation White Paper to set the 
scene for the next generation of growth and development across the aviation sector 
and consider how we can better protect the interests of consumers. 
 
Recent reforms to Sydney Airport will also give more airlines better access to slots at 
our most significant airport, helping further grow competition by increasing 
transparency of slot allocation and use, strengthening compliance and enforcement 
arrangements for slot misuse, and rebalancing slot allocation towards new entrants. 
 
Background 
 
In December 2023, Bonza made up 1.7% of the Australian domestic market. 
 
Bonza had operated a fleet of six aircraft, all of which were leased. Bonza operated 
four Boeing 737 MAX 8 aircraft under lease from AIP Capital LLC (an aviation asset 
management firm based in the UK). Bonza also had a ‘wet lease’ arrangement 
(aircraft and crew are both supplied) for a further two Boeing 737 aircraft with 
Flair Airlines, a Canadian airline.  
 
On 30 April 2024, Bonza cancelled all scheduled flights without notice. In the 
afternoon of 30 April, Bonza entered voluntary administration and appointed Hall 
Chadwick as the administrator.  
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From: Garbin, Christina <Christina.Garbin@pmc.gov.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 7 May 2024 8:31 PM
To: Everist, Kai; Zaheed, Mohita; ; Mullaly, Damian; ; Jose, 

Cameron (Department of Finance - Protected); @finance.gov.au; 
CARR,Henry

Cc: Werner, Stephanie
Subject: RE: Bonza TPs [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL 
Many thanks Kai. 
 

From: Everist, Kai <Kai.Everist@infrastructure.gov.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 7 May 2024 8:13 PM 
To: Zaheed, Mohita <Mohita.Zaheed@treasury.gov.au>; @TREASURY.GOV.AU>; Mullaly, 
Damian <Damian.Mullaly@TREASURY.GOV.AU>; Garbin, Christina <Christina.Garbin@pmc.gov.au>;  

@pmc.gov.au>; Jose, Cameron (Department of Finance - Protected) <Cameron.Jose@finance.gov.au>; 
finance.gov.au; CARR,Henry <Henry.Carr@dewr.gov.au> 

Cc: Werner, Stephanie <Stephanie.Werner@infrastructure.gov.au> 
Subject: Bonza TPs [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 
 

Hi all 
 
See attached updated Bonza TPs. 
 
Thanks 
Kai 
 

 

OFFICIAL 
 

From: Everist, Kai  
Sent: Tuesday, 7 May 2024 1:50 PM 
To: 'Zaheed, Mohita' <Mohita.Zaheed@treasury.gov.au>; @TREASURY.GOV.AU>; 
Mullaly, Damian <Damian.Mullaly@TREASURY.GOV.AU>; 'Christina.Garbin@pmc.gov.au' 
<Christina.Garbin@pmc.gov.au>; @pmc.gov.au>; 'Jose, Cameron (Department of 
Finance - Protected)' <Cameron.Jose@finance.gov.au>; @finance.gov.au>; 
'CARR,Henry' <Henry.Carr@dewr.gov.au> 
Cc: Werner, Stephanie <Stephanie.Werner@infrastructure.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: Bonza Aviation (Administrators Appointed) - Media Statement - 3 May 2024 [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 
 

Hi all 
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See attached release from Hall Chadwick confirming that Bonza flights will be grounded until 14 May, inclusive, and that 
staff will be stood down for the same period. 
 
I will send around updated TPs this afternoon. 
 
Thanks 
Kai 

 

OFFICIAL 
 
From: @gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, 7 May 2024 1:45 PM 
To: @gmail.com> 
Subject: Bonza Aviation (Administrators Appointed) - Media Statement - 3 May 2024 
 
Hi all, 

  

Please find attached a media statement relating to Bonza Aviation Pty Ltd, from the Voluntary 
Administrators. 

  

Kind regards 

  

 

Partner 

 

Level 40 | 2 Park Street | Sydney | NSW 2000 | Australia 

T  Main +61 2 9263 2600 | F +61 2 9263 2800 

E @hallchadwick.com.au | W www.hallchadwick.com.au   

  

 

Issued on behalf of Bonza Aviation Pty Ltd (Administrators Appointed) 
 
Kind regards, 
 

 
 
 

s 47F 

s 47F 
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s 47F 

s 47F 

s 47F 
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M:  
E:    

 
--------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Disclaimer 
 
This message has been issued by the Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development, 
Communications and the Arts. The information transmitted is for the use of the intended recipient only and may 
contain confidential and/or legally privileged material. 
Any review, re-transmission, disclosure, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, 
this information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited and may result in severe 
penalties.  
If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the Department on +61 (2) 6274 7111 and delete all 
copies of this transmission together with any attachments. 
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

T  | Main +61 2 9263 2600 | F +61 2 9263 2800 

E @hallchadwick.com.au | W www.hallchadwick.com.au   

  

 

Issued on behalf of Bonza Aviation Pty Ltd (Administrators Appointed) 
 
Kind regards, 
 

 
 
 

 
M:   
E: @gmail.com 

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




